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OFFICE OF THE GENERAL COUNSEL
bivision of Operations Management

ﬁﬁqpaamnuﬁ 73-85 December 21, 1973

TO: All Regional Divectors, Officers-in-Charge,
and Resident Officers

FROM: Joseph E, DeSio, Associate General Counsel

SUBJECT: Unfair Labor Practice Cases in Which OSHA
Proceedings Have Been Invoked

The Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 1/ provides in Section 11(c)
that:

{1} MNo person shall discharge or in any manner dis-
criminate against any employee because such employee
hag filed any complaint or imstituted or caused to

be instituted any proceeding under or related to this
Act or has testified or is about to testify in such
proceeding or because of the exercise by such employee
on behalf of himself or others of any right afforded
by this Act.

(2) Any employee who believes that he has been dis-
charged or otherwise discriminated against by any
person in violation of this subsection may, within
thirty days after such violation occurs, file a com-
plaint with the Secretary alleging such discrimination.

. . Inh any such action the United States district
courts shall have jurisdiction, for cause shown, to
restrain violations of paragraph (1) of this sub-
section and order all appropriate relief including
rehiring or reinstatement of the employee to his former
position with backpay.

Section 11(c) and the regulations 2/ published by the Department of Labor
governing the enforcement of this section (a copy of these regulations is
attached), provide both a prohibition against, and procedures for remedying,
a variety of employer actions which are also proscribed by the NLRA.

1/ 29 USC 651 et seq.; LRX 6201; Occupational Safety and Health Reporter,
71:1101.
2/ 29 CFR 1977; Occupational Safety and Health Reporter, 51:2101.
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In congequence, we may expect the filing of charges in the Regional Offices
involving unfair labor practice conduct which violates the OSH Act and ’
conduct which not only violates the OSH Act but also is the subject of
complaints concurrently before the Secretary of Labor.

In cases, therefore, in which the alleged unfair labor practices also
violate the O0%H Act, the Region should, before issuing a complaint which
would be otherwise warranted, ascertain whether:

a complaint has been or is to be filed under Section 1l(c)
of the 0SH Act with the Secretary of the Department of Labor.

If so, or if:

the violation of the 0SH Act consists of discrimination
because of an employee's having "instituted or caused to
be instituted any proceeding under or related to' the
0OSH Act or because of hisg participation in such a
proceeding,

the Region should telephonically obtain clearance to issue complaint
from its Assistant General Counsel in order that coordination with the
Department of Labor may obviate duplicate litigation of the same issue,
In cases where the discriminatee has complained only to his employer
concerning safety matters and no complaint has been or is to be filed
under Section 11{(c), no clearance is required.

Attachment
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REGULATIONS ON DISCRIMINATION AGAINST EMPLOYEES
EXERCISING RIGHTS UNDER THE OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT

{Code of Federal Regulations, Title 29, Chapter XVII, Part 1977, effective January 29, 1973)

Title 291 abor

CHAPFTER XVII-OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY
AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION, DE-
PARTMENT OF LABOR

PART 1977—DISCRIMINATION AGAINST
EMPLOYEES  EXERCISING RIGHTS
UNDER THE WILLIAMS-STEIGER OC-
CUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH
ACY OF 1970

CGENERAL

Bec.

19771 Introductory statement,

#1772 Purpose of this part,

1113 Groeeral  reguirements  of  ssction
L1{e) of the Act.

1977 4 Uersong prohibited from  discrim-
inating.
10%. % Persons protecied by section 1i{e).
1776 Uniprotected activities distinguished,
SPECIFIC PROYECYIONS
19718 Complaints under or related to the
Act.

157710 Proceedings under or reiated to the
Act,

187711 'Testimony.

1977.12  Exercise of any right afforded by the
Act.

PROCEDURES

199715 Filing of compialat for discrimina-
tion.

159718 Notificatlon of Secretary of Labor's |
determination, ‘

187747 Withdrawal of complaint.

197138  Arbitration or other agency pro
ceedings. ;
Some Srectric SuarrcTs

1977.21 Walkaround pay disputes, '."

199722 Employee refusal to comply wilh
safety rules, i

197723 SBtate plans, /

AurgorrTY: Bec., 8(g){2), Public Law 81~
594, B4 8tat, 1600 (26 U.5.0. 667). Interpret or
apply sec. 11{c¢), Public Law 91.-596, '84 Stat.
1603 {29 U.B.C. 8680),

(GENERAL

§ 1977.1  Intreductory statement,

{a) The Ocecupational Safety and
Health Act of 1970 (20 U 8.C. 651, et
seq.), hereinalter referred %o as the Act,
is a Federal statute of gemneral applica-
tion designed to regulate employment
conditions relating to cccupational safety
snd health and to achleve safer and
healthier workplaces throughout the Na-
tion. By terms of the Act, every person

H

engaged in & business affecting commerce
who has employees is required to furnish
each of his employees employment and
a place of employment ree irom recog-
nized hazards that are causing or lkely
to cause death or serlous physical harm,
and, further, to comply with occupational
safety and health standards promulgated
under the Act. See Part 1975 of this
chapter concerning coverage of the Act.

{b} The Act provides, among oiher
things, for the adoption of occupational
safety and health standards, research
and development activities, inspections
and investigations of workplaces, and
recordkeeping requirements. Enforee-
ment procedures initinted by the Depart-
ment of Labor, review proceedings be-
fore an independent gquasi-judicial
agency {(the Occupational Safely and
Health Review Commission), and express
judicial review are provided by the Act.
In addition, States which desire to as-
sume responsibility for development and
enforcement of standards which are at
least as effective as the Federal stand-
ards published in this chapter may sub~
init plans for such development and en-
forcement of the Secretary of Labor.

{¢} Employees and representatives of
empioyees are afforded a wide range of
substantive and procedural rights under
the Act. Moreover, efective implementa-
tion of the Act and achievement of its
goals depend in large part upon the ac-
tive but orderly participation of em-
ployees, individually and through their
representatives, at every level of safety
and hesalth activity.

{(d) This part deals essentially with
the rights of employees afforded under
section 11{c) of the Act. Section 11{c)
of the Act prohibits reprisals, in any
form, against employees who exercise
rights under the Act.

§ 1977.2 Purpose of this part.

The purpose of this pari is to make
available in one place interpretations of
the various provisions of section 11(c) of
the Act which will guide the Secretary of
Labor In the performance of his dulies
thereunder unless and until otherwise
directed by authoritative decisions of the
courts, or concluding, upon reexamins-
tion of an interpretation, that it Is

incorrect.

£ 19773  CGeneral requirements of sec
tien 11(¢) of the Act.

Bection 11(¢) provides in general that
no person ahail discharge or in any man-
ner discriminate sgainst any employee
because the employee has: (a) Filed any
complaint under or related to the Act]
(b} Instituted or caused fo be instituted
any proceeding under or related to the
Act: {¢) Testifled or is aboul to testify
in any proceeding under the Act or re-
lated to the Act; or (d) Exercised on his
own behalf or on behalf of others any
right afforded by the Act. Any employee
who believes that he has been discrimin-
ated against in violation of section 11(c}
of the Act may, within 30 days atter such
violation occurs, lodge a complaint with
the Secretary of Labor alleging such vio-
Iation. The Secretary shall ther cause
appropriate investigation to be made. If,
as 8 resuit of such investigation, the
Secretary determines that the provisions
of section 11{c) have been violated civil
action may be instituted in any appro-
priate Uniled States district court, to re-
strain violations of section 11(c) (1) and
to obtain other appropriate relief, includ-~
ing rehiring or reinstatement of the em-
ployee to his former position with back
pay. Section 11(¢) further provides for
notification of complainants by the Sec-
refary of determinafions made pursuant
io their complaints.

§ 1977.1 Persons prohibited from dis-
criminating.

Section 11(¢y specifically states that
“no person shall discharge or in any man-
ner discriminate against any empioyee”
hecause the emplovee has exercised
rights under the Act. Section 3{4} of the
Act defines “person” as “‘ong or raore
individuals, partnerships, associations,
corporations. business trusts, legal repre-
sentatives, or any group of persons.”
Conseguently, the prohlbitions of section
11¢c) are not limited to actions taken
by employers against their own employ-
ees. A person may be chargeable with
discriminatory action sagainst an em-
ployee of another person. Section 11(c¢)
would extend to such entities as organi-
zations representing employvees for col-
lective bargaining purposes, employment
agencies, or any other person in a posi-
tion to diseriminate against an employee.

Copysight © 1973 by The Bursou of Natisnal Affoirs, Inc. T
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siee, Meck V. Uniled Stules. 138 10 2d
#79 (6Lh Clr, 19 Bowe v, Judson O
Burns, 137 Fo2d 37 cied Cir, 10400

BIHTTS Persans pretected By acetion
FY ().

fwe Al emnplovees nre affonted e full
protection of seclion TlecY, Far purposts
af the Act, nn employee s defined as "an
emplovee of an emplover who 18 em-
ploved In a business of lus employer
which affects conunerce.”” The Act does
pot define the terin “employ.” However,
the broad remedial nature nf this legis-
ntion demonstrates s clear congres-
sional intent that the existence of an
employment relationshin, for purposes of
section 1i{c), Is to be based upon coo-
nomic realities rather than upon com-
mon law doctrines and cohcepls. Bee,
U B. v. 8ilk. 331 1.8, 704 (14T, Rulher-
tord Food Corporation v. McComb, 331
0.8 122 (1847),

i) For purposes of section 110} even
an applicant for employment could be
comsidered an employvee, See, NLRB v,
Lamar Creamery, 248 ¥, 2d 8 (Gth Cir,
1957y, Further, because sectlon Il(cy
speaks in terms of any employee, it i
also clear that the employee need not be
an employee of the discriminator. The
principal consideration would be whether
the person slieging discrimination was
an "employee” al the time of engaging In
protected activitv, .

{c1 In view of the definitions of “em-
plover” and “employes” contained in the
Act, employees of a State or political sub-
division thereo! would not ordinarily be
within the contempinted coverage of sec~
tion 1idc).

§ 1977.6  Unprotected activities  distin-
guirhed.

tat Actions taken by an employer,
or otiers, whicl: adversely affect an em-
ployee may be predicated upon nondis-
eriminatory prounds. The proscriptions
of seetion 11c¢) apply whemn the adverse
action occurs because the employee has
engaped in protected activities, An em-
ployees engagement in cactivities pro-
tected by the Act does not automatically
render him immune {rom discharge or
giscipline for legliimate reasons, or {rom
adverse action dictated by non-prohib-
ited considerations. See, NLRB v. Dixie
Motor Coach Corp.. 128 F. 2d 201 (5th
Cir., 1942,

(h) AL the same tlme, to esiablish &
vioiation of section 11t¢}, the empioyee’s
engogement in protected activity need
not be the sole consideration behing dis-
charge or other adverse action. I pro-
tected activity was s substantial reason
for the action, or if the discharge or
other adverse snction would not have
taken place “but for" engagement in
proiected activity, section 1lfc) has
been violated. Sce, Mitchell v. Goodyear
Tire & Rubber Co, 278 F. 2d 362 (8th
Cir., 1960) ; Goidberg v. Bama Manufac-
turing, 302 F. 2d 152 (5th Cir., 1962}.
Ultimately, the issue as {o whether a dis-
charge was because of prolected activity
will hiave to be determined on the basis
of the facis in the particular case.

SPECIFIC PROTECTIONS
§ 1977.9 Complaints under or related {0
the Act,

{(a} Discharge of, or discrimination
against, an employee because the em-

ployee hns filed Vany complaint * * ¢
ungder or related lo this Act * * *7 1y
proniiited by gection iter, An exnnple
i a complaint made “under” the Act
would be sn ocmployee request for
spection pursuant Lo sectlon 84D, How-
ever, this would pot be the ouly type of
camplaint proteciod by section 1lfet,
The range of compinints “reinted 67
the Act 5 commensurate with the broad
remedinsl purposes of this leglslation and
the sweeping scope of its applleation.
which entalls the full extent of the com-
merce power. (Hee Cong. Rec., vol. 116
p, P, 42208 Dec. 17, 1570},

) Complainis registered with other
Pederal agencies which have the au-
tharity to regulate or investigate otcu-
pational safety and heallh conditions
are compiaints “related to” this Act
Likewlse, complaints made to Blate or
local agencies regarding occupational
safety and healih conditions would he
“related o the Act. Such complaints,
however, must relate to conditions al
the workplace, as distinguished from
compinints touching only upon gen-
eral public safety and health.

{¢) Further, the salutary principies
of the Act would be serlously undermined
i employees were discouraged from
lodging complaints about occupational
safety and health matters with thelr em-
ployers. (Sectlon 2(1), (23, and ().
Such complaints to employers, if made in
good faith, therefore would be related to
the Act, and an emsployee would be pro-
tected mgainst discharge or discrimina-
tion caused by a complaint to the
employer.

8 197710  VProceedings under or related
to the Act.

(a) Discharge of, or discrimination
against, any employee because the em-
ployee has “Instituted or eaused to be
instituted any proceeding under or re-
Jated to this Act” is also prohibited by
section 1ligy. Examples of proceedings
which could arise specifically under the
Act would be Inspections of worksites
under section 8 of the Act, employee con-
test of abatement date under section
10¢(c) of the Act, employee initiation of
proceedings for promuigation of an oc-
cupational safety and health standard
under sectlon 6(b) of the Act and part
1811 of this chapter, employee applica-
tion for modification of revocation of &
varjance under section 6(d) of the Act
and pard 1905 of this chapter, employee
judicial challenge to a standard under
section 6¢f) of the Act and employee ap-
peal of an Occupational Safety and
Health Review Commission order under
section 11(a) of the Act. In determining
whether a “proceeding” is “related to”
the Act, the considerations discussed n
8 19779 would also be applicable.

() An emplovee need not himself di-
rectly institute the proceedings, It is sui~
ficlent if he sets Into motion activities of
others which result in proceedings under
or related to the Act.

§1977.11 Testimony.

Discharge of, or discriraination against,
any employee because the employee “has
testified or is about fo testify” in pro-
ceedings under or related to the Act

Occupational Safety & Health Reporter
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is also probibited by section 116
protection woutrd bf course not be Fipitld
tg testimony o procecdings instituted or
eaused to be Instituted by the cmplayes,
but would exlend to any statements glven
in the course of judicind, guasl-judicial,
and  administrative  proceedings,  in-
cluding inspections, investigations, and
sdministrative rule moking or sdjudl-
eative funcilons, If the emplovee is glve
ing or {5 sbout to give lestimony in any
proceeding under or related to the Act,
he would be protected against diserimi-
nation resulting from such testimony.

§ 197112 Exeecise of any right afforded
by the Act,

{2) In addition to protecting employ-
ees who file complaints, institute pro-
ceedings, or testify in proceedings under
or related to the Act section Ilic) also
prolects employees from discrimination
oceurring because of the exercise “of any
right aforded by this Act.” Certain
rights are explicltly provided in the Act]
tor example, there is a right to partiei-
pate as » party in enforcement proceed-
fngs {sec. 107. Certain other rights exist
by necessary implication. For exsmple,
employees may request information from
the Occupational Safety and Health Ad-
ministration; such reguesis would con-
stitute the exercise of a right afforded by
the Acl. Likewise. employees interviewed
by agents of the Secretary in the course
of inspections or investigations could not
subsequently be discriminated against
because of thelr cooperation.

(b} (1} On the other hand, review of
the Act and examination of the legisig-
tive history discloses that. as a general
matler, there is no right afforded by the
Aect which would entitle emplovees to
walk off the job because of potential un-
safe conditions at the workplace. Haz-
ardous conditions which muay be violative
of the Aci will ordinarily be correcled
by the emplover, once brought 10 his at-
tention. I ¢orrections arce pol accom-
plished, or if there js dispute sboul the
existence of a Linzard, the emplovee will
normaily have opportunity to request in-
spection of the workpiace pursuant to
section Bt} of the Act, or to seck the as-
sistance of other public agencies which
nave responsibility in the tield of snfety
and health. Under such circumstances,
therefore, an employer would not ordi-
narily be in violation of section 1ii(c) by
taking action to discipline an employee
for refusing to perform normal job ac-
tivities because~ of alleged safety or
health hazards.

(2. However, occasions might arise
when an employee is confronted with 8
choice between net performing assigned
tasks or subjecting himself to serious in-
jury or death arising from a hazardous
condition at the workplace. If the em-
ployee, with no reasonable alternative,
refuses in .good faith to expose himself
to the dangercus conditicn. he would be
protected against subsequent discrimina-
tion. The condition causing the employ-
ee's apprehension of death or injury must
be of such & nature that a reasonable
person, under the circumstances then
confrenting the employee, would con-
ehude that there is a real danger of death
or serious injury and that there is insuf-
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P
fietent, thue, due to the uigency of the
. sibuntigr, o oliminasie  the  danger
through resord to reguiar statutory en-
foreement channgls, In addition, in such
ecireumsiances, the employee, where pos.
gible, must aisp have sought from his
emplorver, and been unable Lo obiain, a

correction of the dangerous condition,
PiR PR 4877
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£ 197715 Filing of cormplaint for dis
criptination.

() Who may fie, A compinint of seg-
tion 1i¢e) diserimination may be filed
by the employee himself, or by o rep-
resentative suihorized to de so on bils
hehalf,

(b Nalure of filing, No pariicuar
form of compiaini is requitized.

(e} Place of Sling. Complaint should
pe filed with the Ares Director (Occupa-
tional Bafety nnd Health Administra-
tion} responsible for enforcement activ-
ittes in the geographical area where the
employee resides or was employed.

(¢ Time jor fling. (1} Beclion 11
e}y provides that an employee who
believes that he has heen discriminated
against in vielation of section 11€e) (1}
vmay, within 10 days after such viela-
{ign occurs,” file o complaint with the
Secretary of Labor.

(2) A major purpose of ihe 30-day
period in this provision is to allow the
Secretary to decline to entertain com-
piaints which have hecome stale, Accord-
inglv, compinints not filed within 30
davs of an alleged violnlion will ordinar-
ily be presumed to be untimely.

(3 However, there may be circum-
alanees which would justify tolling of the
30-day period on recognized eguitable
principles or hbecause of strongly ex-
tenuating circumstances, e.g.. where the
enmployer has concealed, or misled the
employee regarding the grounds for dis-
charge or other adverse action; where
the employee nins, within the 36-day pe-
riod, resoried in good {alth te grievance-
arbilration proceedings under a collective
hargainirg agreement or filed a com-
plaint regarding the same general sub-
ject with another agency; where the
discrimination is in the nature of & con-
tinuing violation. In the absence of cir-
cumstances justifyving s tolling of the
30-day period, untimely complaints will
not be processed.

$ §977.16  Notifieation of Sceretary of
f.abor's determination.

Section 116¢1(3) provides thail ihe
SBecretary iz to notifly s complainant
within 80 days of the complaint of his
determination whether prohibited dis-
crimination has ocecurred. This 80-day
provision Is considered directory in na-
ture. While every effort will be made to
notify complainants of the Secretary's
determination within 8¢ days, there may
be insiances when it is not possible to
meet {he directory period set forth in
section 11{c) (3).

§ 197717  Whthdrawal of complaint.
Enforcement of ithe provisions of sec-
tion 11{c) is not only a matier of pro-
tecting rights of individual employees,
but also of public interest. Attempts by
#n employee to withdraw a previously
filed compiaint will not necessariiy re-

sult in ierminetlon of the Becretary's
investigation. The Beeretary's jurisdic-
{ton cannol be foreclosed as a maiter of
law by unilatersl action of the employvee,
However, s voluntary and uncoerced re-
guest from a compininant o withdraw
his complaint wilt be given careful con-
shderation and substantial welght as 8
matter of policy and sound enforvement
procedure,

£ 1977.18  Arhitvation ¢ ather agency
procesibings,

tat General (1Y An employee who files
a compiaini under section 11{¢) of the
Act inny also pursue yemedies under
prievance arbilration proceedings in col-
teciive bargaining agreements. In addi-
tion, the complainant may concurrently
resort to oiher agencies for relief, such
as Lhe National Labor Relatlons Board.
The Seeretary’s jurisdiction to entertain
section 1l{c) complaints, to investigiie,
and to determine whether diserimination
has occurrved, is independent of the juris-
diction of other agencies or bodies. The
Secretory may file action In U8, district
ecourt regardiess of the pendeney of other
proceedings.

(2) However, the Seccrelary also rec-
opnizes the national policy favoring
veluntary resolution of dispules under
procedures in colieclive  bargaining
agreements. See, e.g., Boy's Markets, Inc,
¢. Retail Clerks, 398 U8, 235 (1970
Hepublic Steel Corp. v. Maddox, 379 1.5
£50 {10657 ; Carey v. Westinghouse Elec-
tric Co., 375 U8, 261 (1964); Collier
Insulaied Wire, 152 NLRB No. 150 118713,
By the same token, due deference should
Le paid to the jurisdiction of other
forums established to resolve dispules
wiich may also be related to section
11¢c} complaints,

(1) Where a complainant is In fact
pursuing remedies other than those pro-
vided by section 11€(¢), posiponement of
the Segretary’s determination and de-
ferral to the results of such proceedings
may be in order. See, Burlington Truck
Lines, Inc, v. U8, 371 U.8, 156 (1862).

th)y Postponement o} determination,
Postponement of determination would be
justified where the rights asserted in
other proceedings are substantially the
same as rights under section 1i(c) and
those proceedings are not likely to violate
the rights guaranteed by section 11(¢}.
The factual issues in such proceedings
must be substantially the same as those
raised by section 1lic) complaint, and
tie forum hearing the matter must have
the power to determine the ultimate issue
of discrimination. See Rios v. Reynolds
Metals Co., P.2d (8th Cir., 187D, 41
UYSLW. 1048 (Cet. 10, 18572} ; Newman
v. Aveo Corp., 451 ¥2d 743 (6th Cir,
19715,

(e} Deferrel to outcome of other pro-
ceedings. A determination te defer to the
outcome of other proceedings initiated
by a complainant must necessarily be
made on a case-{o-case basis, after care-
ful scrutiny of all available information.
Before deferring to the results of other
proceedings, it must be clear that those
proceedings deali adegusately with .all
factual issues, that the procecdings were

Copyright € 1973 by The Bureou of Noli#mﬂ Affairs, Inc.

falr, repulny, and free of procedurad in-
firmnities, and that the outesme of the
procecdings was nol repunnant o the
purpose ang poliey of the Act. In this
repard, if such eiher aclions ntiated by
a complainant nre dismissed without ad-
judicatory  hearing thersof. such dis-
missnt will not oradinarily be reparded ns
determinative  of (he  sectionn 1lies
compining,

SoME SPECIFIC SBUBIECTR

5 1977.21 0 Walkeround pay disputies.

o) Complaints invelving claims of
diserimination based upon vinployer fail-
ure to pay employees who participate in
section 8ies Federal walkaround inspec-
vions of 2 workplace will require close
serutiny of the facts in esach instance,
However, as a genersl rule, such refussl
to compensate for {ime so spent is not
per se  discriminatory. On the other
hang, there may be situations in whieh
a fAnding of diserimination would be
warrantgd on the basis of specific facls
in the proceeding. For example, an em-
ployer's past practics respecting pay-
ment fur certain other safety and health
netivities on regular working time may
result in o delermination that the {aidure
to vompensate for walkaround s dis-
criminatory, Such pasi praclice must en-
tail, however, nctivities which are closely
analogous to walkaroungd inspection nc-
tivities. 'Phe practice of compensating
atlenders at safety commiiier or gther
safcty meetings 15 neot genevally to be
reparded us evidenre of closely anpiogens
praciices where such commilices and
meetings are purely educntional and ad-
visory in nature.

thy It shoule be emphnsized that an
emplover is in ne way precluded by the
Act from mnaking voluntary agreements
to pay employees for time spent by
them while particlpating in walkaround
inspections,

§1977.22  Employec refusal to comply
with safety rules,

Emplovees who refuse to comply with
pccupational safety and health stand-
ards or valid safely riles implemented
by ihe employer in furtherance of the
Act are not exeroising any rights ai-
forded by the Act. Disciplinary meas-
ures tzken by employers solely in ye-
sponse to employee refusal to comply
with appropriate safety rules and regu-
iations, will not crdinarily be regarded
as diseriminatory action prohibited by
seciion 11(c). This sitnation shouid be
distinguished from refusals to work, as
discussed in § 197712,

§ 197723 Siate plans.

A Btate which is implementing its own
occupational safety and health enforce-
ment program pursuant o section 18
of the Act and Paris 1902 and 1852 of
this chapter must have provisions as ef-
fective as those of section 11{(¢) to pro-
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' A
teet emuloyers {vom discharge or dis-  may sefer complaints of employees ade-

Signed at Washyfigton, DO, this 19th’
crimuinnuon. Suen provisions do not di- quntely protected by State Plans' pro-  day of Jununry 913, L M
vest elther the Sreretpry of labor or  visions to the appropriate siale agency. Hromann P Sonyaert,
pvedernl disirict courts  of jurisdiclion ‘

Tue basie principles outllned in § 1977.18, Bolicttor af Lab(w,h
over employee compiainta of discriminn.  supra will be observed ns Lo deferrals Lo JPE Do TS 1853 Pited | 26 731845 am |
tion. However. the Secretury of Labor findinys of state ngencies.
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